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This form is for use in nominating or requesting determinations of eligitility for individual properties or districts. See instructions in Guidelines
for Compienng Natonal Register Forms (Natonal Register Bulletin 1€). Complete each item by marking “x'* in the appropnate box or by entering
the requested informaton. If an lem does not apply 1o the property being cocumanted, enter *N/A" for “not apphbcable.” For lunctions, styles, matanais,
and areas of significance, enter only the cateqories and subcategones hsted in the instructions, For adaditional space use continuation sheets
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1. Name of Property
historic name Blacksburg Historic District
other names/site number | 50-108
Intersection of Main and Jackson streers and including secrians of Bozaska_ loe,

2. Location Progress, Penn, W 3 ( _ eers_and
“N/A |_Inot tor publication

street & numpber Harding and College avenues,
city. town Blacksburg N/A L vicinity
slate_viroinia code A COUNty Menrgomery code 171 zip code 74 ()&()
3. Classification
Ownersnip of Property Category of Property Numper of Resources within Property
X private (I building(s) Contributing Noncontributing
[:] public-local @distm:! 137 buildings
[T public-State (I site 2 0 sites
E public-Federal D structure 0 0 structures
D object 0 () objects

139 57 Total
Name of related multiple property listing: Prehistoric and Number of contributing resources praviously

Historic Ressurces of Montgomery County listed in the National Register ___0

4. State/Federal Agency Certification

As the designated authority under the National Historic Preservation Act of 1966, as amended, | hereby certify that this
nomination D request for determination of eligibility meets the documentation standards for registering properties in the
National Register of Historic Places and meets the procedural and professional requirements set forth in 36 CFR Pan 60.
In pnrron. the property @meels Ddoes not meet the National Register criteria. DSn continuation sheel.

L taille, (2 Dor. B0
Signature rxl cerufying official

\r

State or Federal agency and bureau

In my opinion, the property [:lmaets Ddoes not meet the National Register criteria. (] ses continuation sneet.

Signature ol commenting or other official Date

State or Fadaral agency and bureau

5. National Park Service Certification
I, hereby, certify that this propeny is:

[[Jentered in the National Register.
|:| See continuation sheel.

Edelermmad eligible for the National
Register. D See continuation sheet.
determined not eligible for the
National Register,

Eramom from the National Register. -
other, {explain:) a

Signature of the Keeper Date of Action



Statement of Significance
r‘amfylng official has considered the significance of this property in relation to other properties:

[ nationaily (] statewide X tocally

Applicable National Register Criteria  X|A [ 18 e Xo

Criteria Considerations (Exceptions) [ JA (8 [Jc [o Je [JF OJe

Period of Significance
17981940

Significant Dates

Areas of Significance (enter categories from instructions) S

Architecture
Archaealoey:  hisrgric mon—aboriejnal

Commergce .
Culturai Affiliation

N/A

Architect/Builder

oy i architaecrgs Littel Em.

N/A Grau., les - builder
Crah, Ralph Adamss; Eubank and Caldwel]:

Carneal and Inhnston
State significance of property, and justify criteria, criteria consideralions, and areas and periods of significance noted above.

The Blacksburg Historic District is significant under
criterion C as an important group of buildings illustrating the
architectural development of the town from its beginnings in
1798, when it was laid out as a sixteen-square grid-pattern town,
through its growth and development in the nineteenth century, and
finally to its alteration and virtual rebuilding in the late
nineteenth and early twentieth centuries. The portion of the
town's plan in the district is a typical grid pattern; however, it represents
4 rare example of the layout of a successful large settlement
located less than ten miles from the county seat. The district
conveys a sense of historic cchesiveness through the similarity
of plans, forms, and materials used in its buildings from the
early nineteenth century through the early twentieth century.
Although the twentieth-century commercial and institutional
buildings represent a departure from the earlier forms, they were
built to such a degree of density that they form a cohesive
entity surrounded by the predominant residential area.
Intrusions and noncontributing buildings have made an adverse
impact on the district's historic character but have not
succeeded in overcoming the architectural and visual cohesiveness
of the district. The district is the largest and best preserved
downtown commercial area in Montgomery County. Blacksburg is
unique in the region as an educationally=sustained town of middile
size that is not also a county seat. The boundaries of the
district are clear,as the university borders it on the west side,
while less developed or almost completely altered areas border it
on the other. The district is also significant under criterion A as the com—
mercial center of Montgomery County which even eclipsed the county seat in com=—
mercial importance. The district ‘as significant under criterion D because it
contains archaeological information from the historic period.
Excavations made at the Johnson House (150-66) were designed to
test for the presence of significant historic period cultural
remains. Although no distinct mid-nineteenth century features
were encountered in the excavations, the ceramic and

ESea continuation sheet




'NWS Form 10-000-4
+a8)

~ United States Department of the Interior
National Park Service

Oidd Approved Ho. 10240018

National Register of Historic Places

Continuation Sheet

Section number ___%  Page .1

Prehistoric and Historic
Resources of Montgomery County
Blacksburg Historic District
150-108

Historic

Commerce/Trade: financial institution

Commerce/Trade: specialty store

Social: meeting hall
Government: post office
Government: city hall
Religion: religious structure

Recreation and Culture: theater

Current

Commerce/Trade: financial institution

Commerce/Trade: specialty store

Social: meeting hall
Government: post office
Government: firehouse
Religion: religious structure

Recreation and Culture: theater
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the Blacksburg Presbyterian Church #1 (150-2) on the north corner
of Main and Lee streets, the Smith-Montgomery House (150-6),
otherwise Known as the Adam Croy House, on the northeast side of
Penn Street between Rcancke and Lee streets, and the Johnson
House (150-66) on the northeast side of Wharton Street between
Roanoke and Lee streets. The 1847 Presbyterian Church is a small
version of the nave-plan Greek Revival churches built in most
towns in the region. It has been used as a lodge hall and
nightclub since 1904 when the congregation built a new church
(150-47), also in the district, and in its wvarying uses has been
adapted several times. The interior retains a gallery and raised
podium, as well as most of the original trim. The front now
displays the original gable and two~bay pilastered facade with
paired double doors. In 1986 a false front added in the early
twentieth century partially fell into the street and was removed
entirely, allowing the partial restoration undertaken by the
present owner. The molded brick cornice is typical of other
buildings built in the mid-nineteenth century.

The Smith-Montgomery House is a two-story log house of a
single-pen form. Most features that could be dated appear to
have been installed in the mid-nineteenth century; a well-
established 1local tradition suggests that it was moved from
across the street where it had been built by Adam Croy. He was
the sexton of the Blacksburg Methodist Church and built the house
before the end of the first quarter of the nineteenth century on
lots 37 and 38, which he purchased from the trustees of the town
of Blacksburg. A Dr. Phillips appears to have moved the house
and added the frame ell. In the twentieth century the central
door was infilled as a bookcase, and the entry was relocated in
the northwest bay of the formerly symmetrical three-bay facade.
The old brick chimney appears to date from the relocation by
Phillips in the 1840s (Schaefer).

The Johnson House is a two-story 1log house of similar
proportions to the Smith-Montgomery House. It was built before
1840 on a one-acre lot just northeast of the original sixteen
blocks. A portion of the lot remains intact tothis day and has
recently been acquired by the town, along with the house, for use
as a park. The house has also suffered from the relationship of
its central entry door to the northwest gable end, but the
original two-story shouldered chimney stands at the opposite
gable end. The house was originally a hall-parlor dwelling. The
two-story ell has been modernized and a two-story side porch has
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been altered. The house will be restored in the near future.

The Johnson House was the subject of archaeological testing
performed as part of the project which led to this nomination.
Eight 1m* test units were excavated in several areas around the

house. Ceramic artifacts, including lead-glazed redwares, salt-
glazed stonewares, and whitewares, as well as both wire and cut
nails were found in most excavation layers. Coal and slag were

recovered from a significant deposit to the rear of the house.

Other log houses, or houses that incorporate early log
elements within their later frame form, include the Croy House

(150-8}. The log house dates from the antebellum period and is
one of the smallest houses surveyed in the county. It appears to
have originally been a three-bay one-story house. An enclosed

stair has been added on the northeast end where the chimney may
have stood. The Spout Spring House (150~68) is an intact hall-
parleor house of two stories and three bays. The central entry
with an early porch gives access to the large room at the
northwest end which is heated by a brick chimney with a simple
pilastered Federal-style mantel with square moldings. A stair
with turned balusters and ornate newels was inserted in the
smaller southwest parlor in the early twentieth century, but many
features of the building are intact. A vertical-board-covered
frame outbuilding to the rear (east) dates from the nineteenth
century.

A nearby spring is included in the district. It supplied
water to the town at an early date, as well as to the south or
Town Branch of Stroubles Creek. The Spencer Johnson (150-60) and
Andy Camper (150-59) houses on Jackson Street are both well
pbreserved two-story, log, hall-parlor or single-pen houses dating
from the mid-nineteenth century, while the Martin-Richardson
House on the east corner of Wharton and Roanoke streets,
diagonally opposite the Croy House, is a two-story, center-
passage, frame house dating from the third quarter of the
nineteenth century; it incorporates a two-story, log, hall-parlor
house, now invisible from the exterior.

Although no early to mid-nineteenth-century structures on
Main Street remain in the district other than the Presbyterian
Church, a significant number of stores survive from the late
nineteenth century when the lots of downtown Blacksburg were
finally filled with tightly-grouped commercial buildings. The

OB Agprorsl No. 10240018
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most significant of these commercial buildings, the 1875-1877
Deverle's Store (150-71) is located on the northwestern edge of
the district. This two-and-one-half-story, gambrel-roofed, frame
building has a wide parapet false front with a central gable and
paired and single brackets. It incorporates two well preserved,
indented, woocd and glass storefronts. The building is
Blacksburg's most substantial and best preserved commercial
building from the late nineteenth century.

The W. B. Conway Building (150-35) is a much altered but
still wvisible late nineteenth-century store/home combination
which housed Conway's drugstore and residence. The pedimented
gable front and upper windows of the building are wvisible above
the mid-twentieth century one-story addition in front. The late
nineteenth-century store (150-67) on the west corner of Jackson
and Main streets is one of the best preserved on Main Street,
although considerably altered. The brick-veneered, frame, gable-
fronted structure has a high parapet with a modillioned cornice.
The first-floor storefront is entered from the corner in a form
characteristic of the turn-of-the-century period. The exterior
in its present form dates from its use as a department store
after 1922, when the brick c¢ladding seems to have been added.
The alterations give the building a significance of form dating
from the late nineteenth century, but its interest and wvisual
integrity date from the first quarter of the twentieth century.

The Lybrook's Row site on Church Street at Roanoke Street,
next to Christ Episcopal Church, was archaeologically tested in
an effort to locate remains of the Bodell Pottery, Lybrook's Row
(a late-nineteenth-century student housing facility), and a
general store on the north corner of the intersection. Redware
potsherds and a piece of kiln furniture were located, although no
remains o©of the Bodell kiln foundations were identified. The
store foundation was located and found to be filled with mid-to
late nineteenth-century refuse, including three pieces of
printer's type. Few traces of Lybrook's Row were discovered
other than a well-defined clay layer which may represent the
foundation on which the row houses were built. Cut and wire
nails and lead-glazed redware and whiteware recovered from the
site of Lybrook's Row suggest that more subsurface features and
artifacts conveying information about the third quarter
nineteenth-century student housing complex are likely intact.

Several houses in the district date from the late nineteenth

OME Approved No. 10240018
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century. The house on the east corner of Lee and Wharton streets
{150-67) is an ornate example of one of the region's most popular
house forms of the pericd. The three-bay, two-story, center-
passage, frame dwelling carries an elaborately detailed two-
story, central, gabled porch. The porch has a guantity of flat
sawn decorative work including balusters, brackets, and fishscale
shingles in the pedimented gable roof. It has a two-story
integral ell, as does the similar brick A. W. Luster House {(150-
1) on the north corner of Roancoke and Wharton streets across the
street from the previocusly mentioned Martin-Richardson House.
The Luster House is, like the two houses above, a center-passage,
three-bay, two-story dwelling with a two-story ell. Like the
Martin-Richardson House, it has a two-story, Doric front porch
with one-story flanking porches, an entry door with sidelights,
and a hipped roof. It has, however, been expanded in the mid-
twentieth century by a brick addition in the angle ¢of the ell and
an extension of the rocf into a much larger apartment house,
although the principal facade and scuthwest elevation are
unaltered.

The Bennett-Pugh House at 103 South Main Street is one of
two surviving houses on Main Street. It is a very well preserved
two-story, double-pile, T-plan dwelling with a nearly pyramidal
hipped roof and ornate sawn and pierced decorative elements in
the projecting gables. It provides an important reminder of the
many residences of various ages that lined Main Street during the
late nineteenth century. Other smaller houses from the late
nineteenth century 1line Lee Street to the northeast of the
original +town. These are one-story center-passage and double-
cell houses of frame construction. The neighborhood was known as
Bitter Hill. Keister's Addition, another intact neighborhood
adjoining downtown Blacksburg, was apparently laid out before
1875 (Dunay et al, p. 107) and included Progress Street and
neighboring alleys and cross streets. Progress, Harding, and
Wilson streets are lined with houses ranging from small, frame,
double~cell dwellings to large frame and brick houses of some
pretension which date from the late nineteenth century and later.
Several of these houses, including the house at 401 Progress
Street (150-73), were moved to this area in 1929 from the
Virginia Polytechnic Institute and State University campus where
they had been built in the late nineteenth century as Faculty
Row. The brick house at 401 Progress Street has paired,
segmentally~arched windows; a hipped roof; an ornate, bracketed
porch; a molded interior chair rail; reeded pilasters supporting

OM8 Approwsl Na. 10740018
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mantels; and an open-stringer ornamental staircase. Another
house at 604 Progress Street (150-82), dating from the late
nineteenth century, 1is a one-and-one-half-story, three-bay,
center-passage hcuse of modest proportions but with sawn ornament
in the gables and on the wide, ocne-story porch. Small, brick
flues flank the central passage.

During the early twentieth century dwellings continued to be
built in every area of the district except the commercial area on
Main Street and College Avenue. Many houses were based on
familiar forms from earlier periods, such as center-passage-plan
and double-cell houses; others took the new Bungalow form or
popular Colonial Revival decorative elements were applied to
stock pattern-book houses of the Foursgquare or other types. The
house on the northeast side of Progress Street (150-79) is a
large house with Foursquare and Colonial Revival features
including a central dormer, a hipped slate roof and cresting, and
Doric columns. It is enclosed by a handsome wrought iron fence
and gate. The nearby Wes Gray House (150-78), on the northwest
corner of Faculty and Progress streets, is a large Foursquare
house built by one of the town's most active contractors who
specialized in Foursquare and Bungalow houses. The brick house
has a slate roof, a concrete foundation, four-over-one and five-
over-one sash tripartite windows, a massive, central dormer, and
a deep modillioned cornice. The wraparound, one-story porch is
supparted on tapered, sgquare columns on brick piers. The house
at 204 Wilson Street (150-76) is a good example of the popular
one-and-one-half-story bungalow. The hip-roofed, frame house
has a central dormer, four-over-one sash windows, exposed rafter
ends, and narrow matchboard siding.

The Presbyterian manse of about 1907 (150-48) on the south
corner of Roanoke and Church streets. is a double-pile, center-
passage-plan house of two stories and five bays built of brick

with a hipped roof. It has four-over-four sgash windows, a
modillioned cornice, and a central dormer, combining vernacular
and popular elements in an important house. The ocne-story broad

front porch is supported by narrow, fluted, Ionic columns. The
Sheriff Camper House (150-53) on the east corner of Penn and
Washington streets was built in about 1910. It features a unique
plan but is said to have been nearly identical to another Camper
family house on Roancke Street. The builder created a radically
different version of the traditional, center-passage, two-story
form, and by fully integrating the ell, created two identical
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facades facing Penn and Washington streets. Both elevations
feature polygonally indented central bays sheltered by projecting
polygonal porches. The house at 210 Roanoke Street (150-56) is a
large and substantial version of the popular Bungalow house form.
It features a high, hipped, tile roof; shingled walls; and a
symmetrical five-bay facade.

The bungalow in the large open plot at the northern edge of
the district is typical of its form. It sits on a hill
overlooking parklike grounds that reflect the rural nature of the
area outside the original grid until the early twentieth century.
The grounds include a rustic gazebo structure. The Ellett House

- at 409 Roancke Street is a large, two-story, frame dwelling which
conceals its traditional, double-pile, center-passage plan behind
a projecting, gabled bay to one side of the central entry. This
weatherboarded house has two-over-two sash windows, a hipped
roof, and a central dormer. The large brick house at the east
corner of Roancke and Penn streets (150-64) takes the form of a
massive double-pile, center-passage house with Colonial Revival
detailing including a colossal pedimented porch supported by two
Doric columns and eight-over-eight sash windows. The house may
derive more from pattern-book interpretations of Federal= and
Colonial-era house plans than from a regional source.

The second of Main Street's two surviving houses is the
frame Eakin House at 318 North Main Street, another two-story,
double-pile, center-passage house of Colonial Revival (as well as
Craftsman) pattern-book origin. It may incorporate parts of the
earlier center-passage Keister House. It has a wide, hipped roof
and a pedimented, two-story, central front porch with flanking,
one-story porches that are supported by tapered, square columns
on shingled piers.

Churches surviving from the late nineteenth and early
twentieth centuries in the district include the 1875-79 Christ
Episcopal Church (150-10), a stone Gothic Revival building
designed by New York architect Emlyn Littel. The church
incorporates pointed-arched windows and stone buttresses as well
as an ornate interior which remains largely unaltered from the
early form. A massive stone tower was added in 1934 following
suggestions made by nationally prominent architect Ralph Adams
Cram. A parish house wing was added soon after, designed by
Richmond architect Ambler Johnston, whose firm, Carneal and
Johnston, also added another wing in the 1960s. Both additions
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are in Keeping with the style and materials of the Richard
Upjohn-influenced main building and create a large complex along
Church Street. The African Methodist Episcopal Church of
Blacksburg (150-106) was built on Penn Street just northwest of
the 1large churches on Church Street. It is a frame, Gothic
Revival structure of the regiconally popular three-bay nave plan
with pointed-arched windows, a projecting vestibule, and a small
hipped belfry.

The brick Blacksburg Presbyterian Church of 1904 (150-47)
was influenced by the popular Ackron plan for churches which
advocated curved seating and large Sunday school facilities which

could be opened into the sanctuary to accommodate large crowds.
The cross-shaped plan incorporates a tall tower at the north
corner and a 1low one at the west, each containing entry
vestibules off Roancke Street. The church has pointed-arched
attached doors and windows with brick label molds.

The nearby, brick Blacksburg Methodist Church of about 1910
{150-53) has been adapted for use as the church's fellowship hall
after the construction of a new church in the 1960s. It is very
similar in form to the Presbyterian church, with its asymmetrical
towers, each containing vestibules and flanking a cross shaped
church. This church, however, utilizes round-arched Romanesque-
style doors and windows and includes a large Palladian window in
the Church Street front center. The brick walls are relieved
with stone and corbelled brick 1label molds, belt and string
courses, and stone-trimmed circular vents. The additions to the
building include the new sanctuary to the northwest and a Sunday
school building to the southeast, neither of which detracts from
the integrity of the original church which has been carefully
maintained on both the interior and exterior. Both the
Blacksburg Methodist Church and the Blacksburg Presbyterian
Church resemble in form the Blacksburg Baptist Church of 1903
which is no longer standing.

The Blacksburg Christian (Disciples of Christ) Church (150-
55) and the frame St. Mary's Catholic Church {(150-75) both date
from the first decade of the twentieth century and have a similar
nave-plan form. Both feature steep gabled roofs, projecting
entry vestibules with arched doors, and pointed-arched windows,
as well as basement fellowship or parish halls. The three-bay
Catholic Church on Wilson Street has been sold to and repaired by
the 0dd Fellows Lodge, while the well maintained, five-bay
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Christian Church is today occupied by the Blacksburg Jewish
Community Center.

The commercial and institutional buildings that characterize
the district today were chiefly built in the first four decades
of the twentieth century. The Hardwick Building (150-33) of
about 1905=--a brick, two-story, double commercial building on the
southwest side of Main Street which features a pressed metal
cornice, rock-faced stone lintels, and two modern storefrontse=—
tvypifies the several buildings from this period. The 1928
Hunter's Lodge Masonic Building (150-43) on the northwest side of
Roanoke Street is a two-story, classical, temple-form parapet-
roofed brick structure. It has limestone engaged pilasters and
an arched entry bay. All three are headed with keystones. The
outstanding Art Deco Naticnal Bank of Blacksburg of 1942, on the
corner of Main and Roanoke streets, is a stone-clad, two-story
building with a much-~altered interior. The carved window frames
and parapet edges enliven the side and principal facades. A
carved eagle supports a central rooftop flagpole above a
projecting central pavilion. The limestone walls rise above a
Lynchburg greenstone base similar to the nearby one-story and
less elaborate Farmers and Merchants Bank (150-99) on the
opposite side of Main Street.

The old Blacksburg Town Hall (150-103) was located from
about 1940 to 1969 in the Martin-Logan Store, built in the mid-
1920s at the end of Church Street on the northwest side of
Jackson Street. It is a brick, parapet-fronted, one-story
commercial building similar to several other buildings of one and
two stories in Blacksburg. The shed-roofed structure has a
wooden modillioned cornice and an altered storefront. The brick
jail (150-102), which was built about 1940, stands to the rear.

Among the town's most distinguished groups of buildings are
the older buildings (150-39 and 150-40) that were unified and
refaced in 1934 by Roanoke architects Eubank and Caldwell to
create the William Preston Hotel. The group of buildings,
consisting of the two-story brick Ellett's Drug Store of 1900 and
the original three-story brick Lyric Theater of 1922, are located
on the east corner of Main Street and College Avenue. They were
given a French Colonial treatment in 1934 when four, stucco,
Icnic pilasters were added to the unified structure, as was an
elaborate modillioned cornice on each individual building. The
drugstore acquired a paneled parapet, rusticated-arched first-
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floor windows, and an overall stucco covering. The exterior of
the two-story section is carefully being rehabilitated. This
includes the restoration of the arched windows and arched
storefront openings.

There are a number of noncontributing buildings in the
digtrict including modern store and office buildings on Main
Street, such as the Bank of Blacksburg (150-37) on the west
corner of Roanoke and Main streets. Other buildings were altered
substantially in recent decades, and some churches and residences
were built after 1940, such as St. Mary's Catholic Church #2
(150-74).

Many of the houses have complementary outbuildings, most
often garages, that are similar in date and materials to
associated houses, At least one house, the Spout Spring House
(150-68), has a nineteenth-century meat house.

QG Aoprove Ng. 10240018
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BLACKS8BURG HISTORIC DISTRICT INVENTORY

North Church Street

100 N. Church Street < 1875-79 Gothic Revival stone
(akyn (5D -10) church: Christ Episcopal
' Church | g
o Tt %‘Jffwi$é-»j — 5y
113 N. Church Street - ' ca. 1920 American Folirsquare frame
dwelling
119 N. Church Street-7gfca. 1920 American Foursquare frame iy S
dwelling

South Church Street

Vol . \
115 South Church Street ca. 1910"#w Romanesque Revival brick

(;vo'ﬁf) church: Blacksburg Methodist
Church
201 S. Church Street 1989 .-, neo-Victorian frame office
building: Church St. Plaza
(noncontributing)
corner of S, Church and E. Roancke streets contributing site of Lybrook's Row,

a late~19th-century student housing complex

Cellege Avenua

133-145 College Avenue 1920s . Jo4 commercial vernacular brick
building: Carol Lee Donut
Shop (Fringe Benefit)

135 College Av,enue.*1 ca. 194027”Art Deco stone theatre:
Fadss 150301 (Lyric Theatre)
149-159 College Avenue 1930s-4¢2 commercial vernacular brick
(Jfo'lﬁ) building: kinkos

Faculty 8treet :

106 Faculty Street —/z| 1930s Colonial Revival brick .,. iz
dwelling ¢

Harding Avenue

205 Harding Avenue - /07 ca. 1940 vernacular frame dwelling </ ... e

7[ (_L,."\ S . ! 1 J‘\‘,, , — 4‘_ {C C{" r(/’;l:x [ PR +f e ¥ M’}? e } V t_‘
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206 Harding Avenue 97 ca. 1940 Colonial Revival frame dwelling~ Sto: f*
ol

207 Harding Avenue ./y/ 1940s Colonial Revival frame dwelling. v s
(noncontributing) fﬁa

209 Harding Avenue - /{7 1920s Bungalow-style frame dwelling A e M

210 Harding Avenue .-7{= 1940s vernacular frame dwelling
(noncontributing

211 Harding Avenue - 2./ 1970s modern brick apartment building

/150 -77) (noncontributing)

212 Harding Avenue -‘?ﬁ' ca. 1940 vernacular frame dwelling

214 Harding Avenue -94 1940s vernacular concrete block
dwelling (noncontributing)

215 Harding Avenue - // ca. 1940 vernacular frame dwelling &¢@ = 77sl

216 Harding Avenue f??ﬁ 1920s Bungalow-style frame dwelling

217 Harding Avenue\_?}’ ca. 1940 vernacular frame dwelling

Jackson Street

103 Jackson Street 1960s - ©7 modern brick commercial T L

- ‘ o buildin noncontributin

/_ZQ Jaiﬁ‘r’“\l ‘:,f ’gg ""f{" 9 ( g) CL:C(? }/{/{[};,5

137 Jackson Street _ 5| 1930s Colonial Revival brick dwellingfim‘)ﬁ
(fraternity) !

139 Jackson Street - %o ca. 1920 commercial vernacular frame
building: New Life Bookstore

141 Jackson Street 7., ca. 1920 commercial vernacular brick

05b./oz)
(15> - 10%)

building: Greater Blacksbhurg
Chamber of Commerce
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- /'/f !/!/m ] f,"‘/ . HL.L-‘
143-147 Jackson Street ca. 1920 American Foursquare brick 7“7 °
~7L, commercial/residential buildingj:,;
N (noncontributing due to loss oftv" -~
77 integrity) vioe T Fis

207

300

301

302

303

305

309

Jackson

JaCkf?Pg

Jackson

Jackson

Jackson

Jackson

Jackson

Street

Lee

102

103

105

301

303

Street - 74 late 19th c.
§E§$et-/9? late 19th c.

Street 19805—-QO

Street - /~ late 19th c.

Street .. 7+351940s

Street - 7; ca. 1900

Street - 7/ 1890s

Lee Street  [&k 1920s
(50-47

Lee Street -z{g‘ ca. 1930

Lee Street - 432 ca. 1920

Lee Street — 47 ca. 1900

Lee Street — & 1970s

S

, N #.,
vernacular frame dwelling }wﬂnlﬁﬂ~ SIS
vernacular frame dwelling

modern brick building:
Blacksburg Volunteer Fire
and First Aid Department
(noncontributing)

vernacular frame dwelling [ﬁ@f,; o

vernacular concrete block <. ({ H-.
dwelling (noncontributing) © '

vernacular frame dwelling

Victorian vernacular frame 7,/ ./ 4.,
dwelling

Gothic Revival brick
church: First Church of
God

vernacular wood/brick |Z:(«:, -~ :vu
dwelling P
Bungalow-style frame [ A.,.., /(ice
dwelling /

T-plan frame dwelling /.., . ., . sl

Ranch-style brick dwelling __- i e
(noncontributing) limgn(A e
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307

408
410

412

414

415

416

418

419

421

423
4277
428

501

502

503

504

4f e

£

JE

7

Lee Street - 373
Lee Street 24‘
Lee Street 273
Lee Street s
Lee Street — 21
Lee Street - 1%
Lee Street - 20
Lee Street — /7
Lee Street - /=
Lee Street . [F7]
Lee Street — /0
Lot ™ -9
Lee Street- (2
Lee Street _ gy
Lee Street -7
Lee Street - ¢7
Lee Street — /G
L{ffyf-'m /O
Lee ¢ — 11

ca. 1910

ca. 1930

ca. 1900

1920s

1920s

ca. 1930

1920s

ca. 1900

ca. 1940

1940s

1960s
1990

ca. 1900

ca. 1900

1940s

ca. 1900

ca. 1900

(‘(;1\ . [(7‘;70

Cd"\

F 5
: ;

American Foursguare frame /v« #hce

dwelling

Craftsman frame dwelling fﬁ%n;kiéyff;c

vernacular frame dwelling G sssn Hse

Bungalow-style frame { ... .‘ A
dwelling Lovcin Hmes

- l"' (e T{: o8
Bungalow-style frame /% } "
dwelling '
Bungalow-style frame C:umfﬂu Heae
dwelling

s

Bungalow-style frame i
dwelling

i EToE S :[‘@-T',"
vernacular frame dwelling-/“*" 777" ' 7%

vernacular concrete block (ycye, Heoo
dwelling

Colonial Revival brick
dwelling (noncontributing)

Ranch-style brick duplex
(noncontributing) Ao i
bty ~Coiefi i, f A
vernacular frame dwelling [J.7is4.e Hoz

vernacular frame dwelling Ail. H:oo

vernacular frame dwelling puile-.o o
(noncontributing) g

vernacular frame dwelling'gfuxﬁj Hoc

vernacular frame dwelling

j?auﬂriszx fﬁ¢%~(ﬁ;erf£§:

Crer

free
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505 Lee

507 Lee

508 Lee

510 Lee

511 Lee

513 Lee

515 Lee

Street — Olp
Street -O£T
Street - 1S

Street — /4

Street - 02

Street —cz.

Street —©J

North Main Street

100 N. Main Stree%

106-108 N.

{‘ ts(} Pl e

107 N. Main Street
{alwo (S0 -37)

109 N. Main Street

110 N. Main Street

R TR Y S
114-116 N. Main Street 1950s _ (2

ca.

1900

1920s

1940s

ca.

ca.

ca.

ca.

1900

1200

1930

1900

1942 - /G

ca.

ca.

Main Street 1940s — 4/

1910 -/9%

1900- /54

a_n
1950s - |73
[ Gocs

/-94.

YR S
vernacular frame dwelling AQJ%Q*“”

Bungalow-style frame
dwelling

Hi!

vernacular frame dwellingD ‘whorvin "
(noncontributing)

s e

T Cottage frame dwelling D= ¥« %%
vernacular frame dwelling
Craftsman frame dwelling Shw«cci' .sc

vernacular frame dwelling .. 7 .. /. &

Art Deco stone commercial
bank: National Bank of
Blacksburg

modern brick commercial %rﬁfﬁ!lf
building: European Pizza ¢ '

(RancepbrIbnting)

frame commercial building
(noncontributing due to modern
alterations)

commercial vernacular brick
building: Main Street Bazaar

modern brick commercial
building (noncontributing) _
7/\1 L / d . {‘f
modern brick commercial -
building: Hugh's Optical/

Pam's Hair Design /f~ . ,‘gng/
(noncontributing) ’
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115 N. Main Street ca. 1900./94> Classical Revival brick
{(Hig 150~ 39 ' commercial building: Four
Winds ‘
117 North Main Street 19705-#'$f: modern brick commercialf}_rrrnﬂ,i
building: Davidsons A2
(noncentributrmeg)
119 N. Main Street _ ca, 1900 - /9/  vernacular brick commercial
a0 (1D- 35 building: The Clothes Rack
120 N. Main Street ca. 1925- /77 cColonial Revival brick
(6w-4ﬂ building:

Blacksburg Post Office

125 N. Main Street “(( 1960s modern brick store:
Grand's (noncontributing)

200 N. Main Street.g,; 1970s modern concrete block & steel ‘
frame commercial building:{gys¢{ﬁﬂ,w
Dominion Trust Co.

(noncontributing)
201 N. Main Street ca. 1910 /.7 commercial vernacular brick
[ Lo /59—34) building: Big Al's Glass
205 N. Main Street ca. 1940 - /44 Art Deco stone commercial
150 = Gepy building: Leonard L. Brown

Insurance Agency

208 N. Main Street_gﬁg 1950s modern concrete block LQ(JQh-ﬁ;rfﬂ
commercial Building: The
Unicycle (noncontributing)

213 N. Main Street _ %f. 1910 -} 7 vVictorian commercial modern
(dbn \50-% brick building: Partyrama/?

210-216 N. Main Street 19205-12@ neoclassical brick commercial
i59-140) puilding: Basic Dance Etc./

Crickets
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-
215 N. Main Street-a‘ﬂf 1970s

1900; - 155
1934 facade

220 N. Main Street
(Q}[-LQ 150 - 1_;ij

221 N. Main Street

970s . /5y
building: (§4 fgn..313 /54

239 N. Main Street
building: . o

foe

302 N. Main Street

( "?.;,9 i, 0 “;E

304-306 N. Main Street 1950s - o

308-314 N. Main Street 1950s -7

318 N. Main Street

322 N. Main Street 1960s ﬁgt’j

- 181

400-410 N. Main Street 1875
[ 150-71)

ca. 19205f/5§

ca. 1930 ./¥2

1920s - £Y¥

modern brick commercial T};iﬁﬂhbt'
building: Central Fidelity
(noncontributing)

Neoclassical stucco-clad
commercial building:

Ellett's Drugstore Building
modern brick commercial
College Inn (noncontributing)
commercial vernacular

Corner Drug Store

commercial vernacular
building: Our Daily Bread,
Bakery

modern brick commercial
building: Harley's Shoe Repair

(noncontributing)

modern brick commercial hs;;;y<%fv
building: Marlyn's Hair Design
(noncontributing)

American foursquare frame J2(sicr -

commercial building: Raines [,j-.,. -
Real Estate, Inc. (originally e
residential) i

modern commercial building: L
The Hokie House #LJPIC;
(noncontributing)

commercial vernacular frame
building: Nick Nack Paddy Wack
Hair World Salon/New Images
(originally C.A. Deyerle
Store)
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7 X_j )}f.f” i
South Main Street

101 5. Main Street -}5% 1920s
{150 «d)

103 S. Main Street-#;'ﬂ ca. 1900

109 S. Main Street,/7y ca. 1900
(750-qsf)

113 S. Main Street ! 76 ca. 1930

117 in Stree 11 1847
4,? J,‘_. .

201 S. Main Street -4< 1920s

North Penn Street

— "’.‘

Penn A Stree }late 19th c.

(j30—59
Penn Street.. {1 ca. 1940

101 N.

103 N.

105 N. Penn Street & ¥ ca. 1900

107 N. Penn Street-/7 ca. 1900

™ A
Penn Street 1901
(150 - jol)

109 N.

Bouth Pann Street

103 S. Penn Street-f745mid—late
Cadso 150- ) 19th c.

201 S. Penn Street -{p 1940s

Lo /)%.,.:-; 'f lf}gu o 2

Py

7 7 .
[kt ure Gaciiy
</

commercial vernacular brick
building: The Flower Box

Victorian vernacular frame Lﬁ;uu7

dwelling el Hoe
vernacular wood frame/brick

veneer commercial building:
Sanderson Cleaners, Inc.

vernacular frame commercial
building: Lucky Cab Co.

Greek Revival brick former Blackshurg
Presbyterian Church .
Bungalow-style brick dwelling |..i--. ., fis¢

vernacular frame dwelling

vernacular frame garage/
dwelling

vernacular frame dwelling 7, (o0 o e
vernacular frame L

building: Wooghouse [A/.i7it vy
Storage (originally used for

wool storage)

Gothic Revival wood frame,
stucco-clad church: St.Paul's
A.M.E. Church

vernacular frame dwelling:
Adam Croy House

Colonial Revival brick -
dwelling (noncontributing) i Hie
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203 S. Penn Street 1960s -] 77

207 S. Penn Street - 5% 1970's

7 Pepn 12y

]

Progress Street

/ﬁ Ao

220 Progress Street -7/ ca. 1950

221 Progress Street 1970s -/ 27
o
222 Progress Street 1930s - &
301 Progress Street 1930s - | /2
302 Progress Street 1910s - /0%
304 Progress Street 1940s. /%0
305 Progress Street 1950s - 17
fr SO-—74)
8 Fiaress P Y G2
401 Progress Street ca. 1910./ /a
(150 - 12)
402 Progress Street ca. 1900-/2(,

403-405 Progress Street 1960s —/z 7.

404 Progress Street 19408 - 125

Ranch-style brick dwelling
(noncontributing)

modern frame dwelling C};nwmgr 1< Hse
(noncontributing) !

Cf}r}mm;my floe

modern brick office building:
Matthew W. Glasgow, Dentist Ao
(noncontributing) L
modern brick commercial (.., /¢,
building: Greeks' Restaurant ‘.,
(noncontributing) -~

Colonial Revival/Craftsman‘//ﬁ/ﬁf'}f%e
brick dwelling )

Colonial Revival frame
dwelling

American Foursquare /.. . - ¢
frame dwelling

vernacular frame dwellingliﬁf/f: Mie
(noncontributing)

modern stone building:
St. Francis Anglican Church
(noncontributing)
v eene flecs
modified Queen Anne brick
dwelling

o fetieee He
vernacular frame dwelling -

S s

Colonial Revival brick  Hrcller
dwelling (noncontributing) /ﬁﬁ:

Colonial Revival frame
dwelling (noncontributing)
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406 Progress Street
408 Progress Street

501 Progress Street
(s*o—ﬂ 3

502 Progress Street

503 Progress Street
dwelling

504 Progress Stree
(150-7%

505 Progress Street

506-8 Progr;ss Street

\/fp'go

507-9 Progress Street

510 Progress Street

511-513 Progress Street

512 Progress Street

515 Progress Street

600 Progress Street
g (15’0-35

602 Progress Street

1940s . | =4}

late - [2.2
19th c.
19208 . /g
1960s - /2.0

ca. 1950s -// 7

19108 - /L¢
1920s - //&
19208 . /. /
19208 - /75
1940s _ /19
1950s - //4"

ca. 1905 ~ /1 ¥

19208 ~ /7%
ca. 1900.[(,

19208 - // 7.

Colonial Revival frame
dwelling (noncontributing)

I house frame dwelling Beswon Hee

American Foursgquare brick
dwelling

modern frame dwelling Jola o erfeetiic

(noncontributing) Flue
Colonial Revival brick
(noncontributing)

American Foursquare frame

dwelling

~ees

Bungalow-style brick dwellingf%ﬁ

<

Craftsman/modified Queen Anne
stucco-clad dwelling

Craftsman brick dwelling
vernacular frame with stone L;ﬂrfbbi

veneer dwelling

. . PRI T
(noncontributing)

vernacular concrete block r4~w”/f: Al
dwelling (noncontributing)

modified Queen Anne frame 9. . #:ov
dwelling /

Craftsman frame dwelling Kesslo, [':;
T-plan brick dwelling

American Foursquare brick
dwelling et recesd TS
o
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603 Progress Street 1940s . /07

treet
(50-§2)

605 Progress Street

604 Progress

1940s . /5%

606 Progress Street 1920s -/
607 Progress Street ca. 1900 -/u7
East Roanoke gStreet
¢
105 E. Roanoke Street 1927 - /&4
(15047
111 E. Roanoke street 1980s - 57
115 E. Roanoke Street 1904° /( 2

(150-47)

119 E. Roanoke Street ca. 1907 - /2
S50 -48)
201 E. Roancke Street ca. 1910 -/4/
(150-55)
202 E. Roancke Street ca. 1900-/6¢
150 -5%)
203 E. Roanoke Street ca. 1950 — 45
204 E. Roanoke Street ca. 1900s. 57
209 E. Roanoke Street ca. 1900.%5,

ca. 1900- /(S

Colonial Revival frame
dwelling (noncontributing)

vernacular frame dwelling

Colonial Revival frame
dwelling (noncontributing)

Bungalow-style brick dwelling L

modified Queen Anne frame . = ;.
‘ <—,f PRV I j; I'd
dwelling S

Classical Revival brick
building: Masonic Lodge

modern brick commercial Qa@da
building (noncontributing)

Gothic Revival brick church:
First Church of God
(originally Blacksburg
Presbyterian Church)

American Foursquare brick
dwelling

Gothic Revival brick
synagogue:

Blacksburg Jewish Center
(originally Blacksburg
Christian Church)

vernacular frame dwelling

. . . i .ok RN .
modern brick building Flaciesour: (ke ogpran
(noncontributing) T IT

:

vernacular frame dwelling Jid € e Q5¢

A
T-plan frame dwelling f,{.., +Hoe
4
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210 E. Roanok?-stree ca. 1915,/5? Bungalow-style frame dwelling
/5
301 E., Roanocke Street ca. 1920 -%4 American Foursquare frame (ﬁh,h,,,,ay‘
dwelling '
302 E. Roanoke street 1920s _(5¥ Colonial Revival brick
(150-td) fraternity house (AKE House)
303 E. Roancke Street 1920s - 5?7 American Foursquare brick .. .7/
dwelling -
304 E. Roanocke Street 1890s —4 | vernacular frame dwelling FavicT He
305 E. Roanoke Street 1920s - 4 Bungalow-style frame dwelling
306 E. Roanoke Street ca. 1900-50 vernacular frame dwelling ;bb~iﬁ_ﬁﬁia_
307 E. oke Street mid.19th c.-/477 vernacular log dwelling (Croy
{alo 150 -%) House)
- lsfw
400 E. Roanoke Street  late 19th c. vernacular I house frame
(#tzn 150-1%) dwelling
- 15
401 Ei(Roanoke' treet mid. 19th c. I house brick dwelling
Fadon 150 -
405 E. Roanoke Street 1920s - 4< Craftsman brick dwelling flﬂuﬁff
409 E. Roanocke Street ca. 190Q—/Eﬂf modified Queen Anne frame
(150-63) dwelling
410 E. Roanocke Street ca. 1910 %}’ modified Queen Anne frame 77&v4[-
dwelling Linidry -
H) i L .
420 E. Roanoke Street 1958s _ ¢4 7 modern brick building: f{uitief Hoe
fraternity house
fnonecontriputine-
West Roanoke Street
106 W. Rcanoke Street 1950s .f%)@ modern brick commercial

Turner Street

109 Turner Street - /{0 1920s

building: World Travel Service

M

Tudor Revival brick dwelling Loz
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T Uy e f"f O
PN . AR RS AT A

Washington Street

301 wWashington Street

ca. 1960- <277

302 Washington Str 1900- /52
(ESO-753

304 Washington Street

306 Washington Street

,.-Nrm‘? QY’,JJ‘}, _;f-—-—g

308 Washindton Street

Wharton Street

107 Wharton Street /50
??SD -+ h:-}
110 Wharton Street-7+

200 Wharton Street- 27z

-G
201 Wha?%ggriggeet /4,
203 Wharton Street. 295

208 Wharton Street- %!

208A Wharton Stree€/¢2

209 Whartc?: Stre?t-/47
150 .68

307 Wharton Street-ag

309 Wharton Street.-7 7/

311 Wharton Street»éu;

19408  2(

ca. 1900-/51

ca. 1900 —24

mid.19%th c.
ca. 1900

1920s

late 19th c.
1940s

1980s

ca. 1900
mid. 19th c.
ca. 1900

ca. 1900;
1960s addition

1970s

Ranch-style brick dwelling.zy ..+ ¢
{nencontributing)

vernacular frame dwelling

vernacular frame dwelling
(noncontributing)

vernacular frame dwelling

U!diu CEU»“ per ;“‘»;

vernacular' frame dwelling

vernacular frame dwelling (Johnson House)
contributing 19th-century archaeological site

vernacular frame dwelling 7., .- Ho.

Colonial Revival frame
dwelling

I-house frame dwelling

vernacular frame dwelling Dl sy s '
fﬂ(;:" f't:“;l{{'j

modern frame apartment
building (noncontributing)
vernacular frame dwelling

vernacular log dwelling

vernacular frame dwelling

vernacular frame dwelling

modern frame dwelling
(noncontributing)
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Wilson Street

145

199

206

207

208

209

210

211

212

302

303

Wilson Street -1777 ca. 1900

Wilson Street. /5

[150-75)

Wilson

Wilson Street

Wilson

Street

Street

wWold g S (.

Wilson

1/2 Wilson Street

Wilson

Wilson

Wilson

Wilson

Wilson

Wilson

Wilson

Wilson

Wilson

Street

Street

Street

Street

Street

Street

Street

Street

Street

ca. 19060

ca. 1930 -3
1920s - [ 3|

ca. 1900- 137

— 206 (edsp 150-76)

ca. 1930- |72

f

1950s . {4i+
1940s - | 2 2.

ca. 1940 - {39

1950s ~ | 37

ca. 1930 - /4o

1950s — | 34
1920s - /Y]
1940s — [ 24

19408 — [4 2

Street '/QQ 1920s

vernacular frame dwellingéfty Mg,

Gothic Revival wood building:
0dd Fellows Lodge (originally
St. Mary's Catholic Church)

v/ f;‘"f‘i;-"t"

Fifie

Bungalow-style frame dwelling!
Bungalow-style brick dwellingfbyqﬁyr
T-plan house frame dwelling Mo
Bungalow-style frame dwelling Div- fic

modern frame garage/dwelling
(noncontributing)

Colonial Revival brick
dwelling (noncontributing)

vernacular frame dwelling (ﬁ,ax-fo;
g RS

modern frame stucco-clad
dwelling (noncontributing)

Bungalow-style frame dwelling

modern frame dwelling
(noncontributing)

American Foursguare brick}%f¢,14¢q
dwelling

vernacular frame dwelling
(noncontributing)

English Cottage-style brick/jg(k Hee
dwelling (noncontributing)

Craftsman frame dwelling P@phﬂfvfﬁﬁq
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304 Wilson Street /%3 ca. 1915
401 Wilson Street . /.7 ca. 1920
405 Wilson Street,/ﬂﬂ{ 1920s

Weoclwine Street

16, Woolwine Street*04'19805

Bungalow-style frame dwelling

3

Bungalow-style frame dwellinq/;f”ﬂw
. T

Bungalow-style frame dwelling

Ranch-style frame dwelling
(noncontributing)
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architectural artifacts recovered constitute a substantial late
nineteenth- and early twentieth-century artifact assemblage. The
distribution of these artifacts in all areas of the property
strongly suggest that extensive nineteenth-century deposits and
features are located in the unexcavated grounds around the
Johnson House.

Limited excavations have been performed on the site of
Lybrook's Row in an attempt to find traces of Lybrook's Row and
Bodell pottery; this attempt uncovered lead-glazed pottery and a
piece of KkKiln furniture. Foundation remnants of a store and
Lybrook's Row student housing were identified along with

- associated artifacts relating to nineteenth-century architectural
technology, printing, and the production of utilitarian pottery.
The site 1is significant, therefore, in terms o©of research
interests because of the extensive artifact deposits identified
which largely relate to the significant period of use in the mid-
to late nineteenth century, providing a record of material
culture enhancing the historical documentation of the area.

Although no foundations of the Bodell pottery kiln were
identified, the recovery of high frequencies of 1lead-glazed
sherds, along with a piece of kiln furniture provide information
on pottery making technology o©f the mid-nineteenth century.
Buried artifact-bearing zones were particularly rich in the areas
of Squares 4, 5, and 6, where the store was likely located. A
range of architectural artifacts including nails, window glass,
and brick were recovered along with coal and a variety of ceramic

wares. The stratigraphy of these squares suggested that this
area was filled with debris produced by the removal of the
building. The artifacts and printer's type recovered provide an

excellent artifact sample reflecting commercial activities
conducted in the building.

A clay foundation and associated artifacts were identified
in an area where Lybrock's Row was located (Squares 1, 2, and 3)
and reflect domestic activities conducted here. These however,
were never classroom facilities, but formed Virginia Polytechnic
Institute and State University's first off-campus student
housing.

This property, therefore, is significant in terms of
research interests because of the extensive artifact deposits
identified which largely relate to its significant period of use
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in the mid-nineteenth century. These deposits provide a record
of material culture that both corroborates and enhances the
historical documentation of the area. The deposits alsc provide
additional documentation of the area, and supply information on
ceramic technology and style, commercial and domestic activities,
and their associated architectural features.

Blacksburg was formally established as a town on January 13,
1798, but in reality it is at least one year older. The town wag
established on the property of William Black on land that
formerly belonged to his father, Samuel Black, and originally was

a part of the Draper's Meadow Patton tract. Upon Samuel Black's
death in 1772, his land was divided bketween his sons William and
John, The dividing 1line seems to have corresponded with the

present Draper Road which runs parallel to and one block
southwest of Main Street. This line was important in determining
the placement of the town (Kegley). The circumstances of
Blacksburg's beginnings are mentioned in a petition William Black
made to the General Assembly for incorporation of the town. The
petition read in part:

William Black humbly sheweth that your petitioner having

a piece of ground in a healthy climate a fertile
neighborhood with excellent springs thereon, and agreeably
and well situated for a small town, did at the request of a
number of his £friends and neighbors, lay off thirty-eight
acres three quarters of an acre and twenty-~five poles of the
same, into lots and streets and disposed of a number of the
said lots, the purchaser of which hath built and are now
building several houses thereon (Dunay).

It seems strange that a town was established so near
Christiansburg, the county seat and a way station on the Great
Road located approximately seven miles to the south. It is
likely, however, that Blacksburg was meant to capitalize on the
traffic of the Peppers Ferry Road, the alternate and parallel
route to the Ingles Ferxry Road, which passed through
Christiansburg. Both towns were laid out in the 1790s.

The town that William Black had laid off by 1797 was a
rectangular grid of sixteen blocks. The property 1line
corresponding to Draper Road anchored the grid and was originally
known as Roap (Rope) Street or Water Street. (It occupied a
marshy stream bed). The next street parallel to this line and



O&d3 Approwel No. 10240018
NPS Form 100008

i+ -

_United States Department of the Interior
National Park Service

National Register of Historic Places
Continuation Sheet Prehistoric and Historic

Resources of Montgomery County
Blacksburg Historic District

Section number __ 8  Page 1 __ 150-108

running along a slight rise was the principal thoroughfare,
originally known as Toms Creek Street, but soon called Main
Street. The sloping space between Main Street and Draper Reoad
was occupied by the first range of four two-acre blocks; three
more ranges filled in the rest of the town land. Each block was

divided into four half-acre lots. The Town Branch of Stroubles
Creek arose at a cluster of springs on the northeast edge of
Blacksburg and flowed through +the town,. When the General

Assembly established the town in 1798, seven prominent local
landholders were named trustees: William Black, John Black, John
Preston, James P. Preston, John Henderson, George Rutledge, and
Edward Rutledge.

John Preston may have established Blacksburg's first store
at the corner of Main and Jackson streets as early as 1798
(Montgomery County deeds). A meetinghouse used by the Methodists
and the Presbyterians stood at the corner of Church and Lee
streets by 1819. Lydia Savine ran an early tavern that was moved
from an unspecified location in town to a lot on Main Street in
1808. Dangerfield Dobbyns taught school at a small schoolhouse
on Roanoke Road on the eastern outskirts of the town (Crush, p.
11).

The Blacksburg Presbyterian Church, formed in 1832,
constructed its first church on Clay Street overlooking the town.
This modest frame structure is no longer standing. In 1848 the
Presbyterians built a new church. This second and still-standing
Blacksburg Presbyterian Church (150-2) was a two-bay, nave-plan,
brick building constructed at a bustling location on the north
corner of Main and Lee streets (Smyth, p. 2, 4, 52). This may
have prompted the Methodists to build another church on the site
of their original church (Smyth, p. 4, 6). The Baptists erected
a church at Church and Roancke streets in the 1850s (Conway).

Unlike Christiansburg, Blacksburg gradually filled the many
blocks not directly located on its main street. In fact, only
the early houses built on the narrower back streets have survived
to the present. Harmon Sifford established a tanyard at the
western edge of town in 1809 (Montgomery County Deed Book E, bp.
28); by 1871 there were three tanyard sites in or near the town,
all of them located along streams. Associated with these
tanyards were a number of small-scale industries. The Conway
tanyard at the eastern edge of town had a weaving shop,
saddlemaker's shop, and tin shop. The Sifford-Peck tanyard
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between Lee and Washington streets on both sides of Main Street
had a tin shop. This tanyard became defunct in 1871 (Conway).

The extent of the town's growth by 1833 is suggested by a
sketch map made by engineer and surveyor James Herron oOr an
associate. The map is apparently limited to the lots abutting
Main Street for it does not show any of the growth that is known
to have occurred on Church Street and elsewhere. It has been
sometimes asserted that Blacksburg originally consisted of six
blocks instead of sixteen; the 1833 map portrays roughly six
blocks. It may be that only six out of the original sixteen
blocks were surveyed and developed by the 1830s (Virginia Board
of Public Works, Southwestern Turnpike papers).

In 1828 John B. Goodrich (then a citizen of Blacksburg and a
schoolteacher) dedicated a spring on the south side of Main
Street "for use and benefits of the citizens of Blacksburg [with
the restriction that] no persons using the spring shall be
allowed to wash themselves or any particle [sic] of clothing
within the boundary of said [spring] lot, but allowed merely to
take water from the spring in clean vessels" (Goodrich). This
spring remained in public use into the late nineteenth century
when a stone wall was built to enclose it, It was abandoned
about that time as it became increasingly polluted (Blacksburg
Town Minutes).

The chief merchants 1in Blacksburg during the antebellum
period included Nicholas M. Ronald, Germanicus Kent, William
Thomas, John Peterman, and Edwin J. Amiss. Peterman and Amiss-
were innkeepers as well ags merchants. Thomas operated a number
of tanyvards and had hides taken to Buchanan in Botetourt County
by wagon where they were shipped by c¢anal to Richmond.
Merchandise for his store was then shipped and hauled back from
Richmond (Robinson).

The Blacksburg Savings Institution was incorporated on March
8, 1849, The original directors of this bank, which included
most of the town's merchants, were Edwin J. Amiss, N. M. Ronald,
John R. Phillips, Germanicus Kent, William Thomas, Thomas Taylor
Jackson, Thomas R. Edwins, William H. Peck, Jchn Peterman, and
Francis Henderson. Conway wrote about the Blacksburg Savings
Institution in 1881: "The bank, which at first occupied the
corner room of Amiss's Hotel, now Mr. Bodell's house, was
chartered through the agency of Jas. Kent, Ballard Preston, Col.
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Thomas and Ed Amiss. Afterwards others joined the enterprise.
The late war cut short its career and made it a muddle of no
ordinary consistency. The anticipations of its projectors sadly
miscarried, though it contributed one of our finest residences to
our village" (Conway). The Amiss Hotel was a brick house on the
northern corner of Main and Roancke streetis. The "fine
residence"” Conrad referred to was the large brick house on the
southern corner of Main and Jackson streets. The bank of Conway
and Hubbert was established by 1889. The Bank of Blacksburg was
charted in 1891 with Alexander Black as its first president. 1Its
first office was in the building originally built for the
Blacksburg Savings Institution/Farmer's Bank in 1855 ({News
- Messenger Centennial Edition). It is no longer standing.

In 1901 the Bank of Blacksburg moved to the Conway Building
(150-36) next docor to its former offices, and in 1920 it
constructed a two-story, brick-faced bank and store building
(150-37) on the western corner of Main and Roanoke streets. In
1922 the name of the bank was changed to The National Bank of
BlacKksburg, its present name. In 1942 the bank built a stylish,
coursed-stone building (150-42) across the street on the site of
the Amiss Hotel, and in 1961 the bank moved a third time to the
southern corner of Main and Roanoke streets, the site of the
Helm-Lancaster house (Price file).

In the early 1920s the Farmers and Merchants Bank built a
small, one-story, brick-faced building (150-99) beside the
Hardwick Building (150-33) on Main Street in Blacksburg. By the
1940s this building had received a new facade. The Hunter's
Lodge No. 156 was begun in Blacksburg in 1856. This lodge
concerned itself with the education of school children and in
1858 took over the administration of the Blacksburg Female
Academy (Shanks, p. 8). This lodge is still active and meets in
a building on Roanoke Street built by local contractor, Wes Gray,
in 1928.

In 1875 Charles A. Deverle moved his general store and hack
office from a frame building on Main Street between Roancke and
Lee streets to a new 1location (150-71) on North Main Street
directly across from the College Building (Montgomery County Deed
Book U, p. 249, 478). He advertised his "House on the Hill" as
the "store nearest and most convenient for students" (Gray
Jacket). Other stores which located near the campus were Eakin's
(1870s) and Ellett's Drugstore (1900) (150-39). Deyerle's Store
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is one of the earliest and best preserved commercial buildings

in the county. The site of Lybrcok's Row built about 1870 was
archaeclogically tested as part of this nomination process. It
was also known as "Hell's Row", and early students of the

Virginia Agricultural and Mechanical College resided there.

Christ Episcopal Church (150-10) was built in Blacksburg in
the late 1870s. It was the first church in the county to abjure
the simple nave plan and incorporate a side entry, chancel, and
Gothic decorative and structural motifs such as exposed wood roof
supports and buttresses; it was designed by a New York architect,
Emlyn Littel. A tower added in the early twentieth century
further strengthened the building's ties with the church designs
of Richard Upjohn and others. Most o©of the denominations built
churches during the late nineteenth or early twentieth centuries.

There does not appear to ever have been a period when
Blacksburg suffered a long-range decline in population. Growth
slackened in the last quarter of the nineteenth century, but
starting in 1900 the rate picked up and accelerated with each
decade, further spurred in the 1940s with the war-time influx of
employees at Virginia Polytechnic Institute and State University.
From 768 in 1900, Blacksburg's population grew to 1,400 in 1930,
2,130 in 1940, and 3,358 in 1950 (U. S. Census).

The beginning of the +twentieth century saw the development
of a new commercial district along North Main Street. During this
time, Blacksburg also witnessed the growth of several new
residential districts: one was located to the north of campus
along the Peppers Ferry Road, one was up Bitter Hill on the
northeast outskirts of the old town, and one was located on the
south side of the campus. The last-mentioned neighborhood
(located along Progress Street) was inhabited principally by
cecllege professors and town business leaders, whereas Bitter Hill
and the Peppers Ferry Road neighborhood (sometimes referred to as
"Pot-Likker Flats") comprised the support community for the
college (Smyth). In the early 1920s the sizeable and fashionable
Miller-Southside Addition extended the town's boundaries to the
south (Montgomery County deeds).

Also in the early 1920s, Blacksburg's downtown underwent a
rebuilding as brick-clad two- and three-story commercial
buildings with apartments in the upper stories replaced earlier
commercial buildings and houses. Older buildings were sometimes
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refaced, such as the Ellett's Drugstore Building (150-39) of 1900
which was refaced in 1934 by the Roanoke architectural firm of
Eubank and Caldwell to create a portion of the William Preston
Hotel. This building is elegantly detailed with arched windows
in a rusticated first floor and a classical cornice. By the
1950s an almost solid wall of building fronts on College Avenue

faced the campus.

Residential architecture in the late nineteenth and early
twentieth centuries took the form of regional vernacular center-
passage, double-cell, and T-plan forms, but almost as many
dwellings were identified with the popular Bungalow and

" Foursquare forms. At least eighty-one bungalows and twenty-eight
foursquare dwellings dating from the early twentieth century were
located in Blacksburg, while a total of 132 houses representing
traditional wvernacular forms, such as the single-pile center-
passage (twenty-two examples) and single-pile double-cell
dwellings (sixty examples) were found in Christiansburg. While
Christiansburg has a large number of bungalows (111) and
vernacular houses (197) from the same period, it has far fewer
foursquare houses, (7) and its chief numerical strength lies in
single-pile, double-cell houses (116). These approximate numbers
were achieved by combining surveyed houses with buildings mapped
using a typclogical code. The predominance of foursquare (two-
story) houses in Blacksburg may indicate a large proportion of
middle class or white-collar families, either related directly to
the college or to its support. In contrast, Christiansburg’'s
access to the railroad and highly developed industrial sector
appears to have resulted in the construction of many small
inexpensive houses, and perhaps the retention of the more
traditional forms of dwellings.
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Street, thence northwest along the northeast side of Main Street
to point FF at the north corner of Main and Roanoke streets,
thence southwest along the northwest side of Roanoke street to
peint GG, thence northwest aleong the rear (scuthwest) lines of
lots on the southwest side of Main Street to point HH, thence
southwest along the rear (southeast) 1lines of lots on the
southeast side of College Avenue to point II on the northeast
side of Draper Road, thence northwest along the northeast side of
Draper Road to the point of origin.

UTM REFERENCES - continued

E 17/552520/4120660

F 17/552620/4120540
G 17/552510/4120280
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southwest side of Progress Street to peoint G at the west corner
of the lot at 607 Progress Street, thence northeast along the
northwest side of said lot to point H, thence southeast along the
southwest side of Progress Street to point I, thence northeast
along the northwest lot line of 606 Progress Street to point J,
thence southeast along the rear (northeast) 1lines of the lots
along the northeast side of Progress Street to point K on Faculty
Street, thence along the west, northwest, and northeast lot lines
of 303 Wilson Street to point L, thence south along the west side
of 01d Harding Avenue to point M on the northeast side of Bennett
Street, thence southeast along the southwest side of Bennett
Street, to point N, thence southwest along the rear (southeast)
- lines of lots along the southeast side of Harding Avenue to point
C at the north corner of the lot at 309 Jackson Street, thence
southeast along the northeast side of said lot and the northeast
side of Wharton Street to point P at the west corner of the lot
at 401 Roanoke Street, thence northeast along the rear
(northwest) lines of the lots on the northwest side of Roanoke
Street, to point Q at the north corner of the lot at 409 Reoanoke
Street, thence east along the northeast lot line of 409 Roanoke
Street, crossing Roanoke Street, and along the northeast lot line
of 420 Roanoke Street to point R, thence southwest and southeast
along the rear (southeast and northeast) lot lines of 420 Roanoke
Street and 107 Wharton Street to point S on the northwest side of
Lee Street, thence northeast along the northwest side of Lee
Street to point T at the south corner of the lot at 415 Lee
Street, thence northwest along the scouth side of the lot at 415 Lee Street,
and northeast along the rear lot lines of the lots at 415-425 Lee St.to a point U,
thence northeast with the rear (northwest) lines of lots on the
northwest side of Lee Street to point VY at the northeast corner
of the lot at 315 Lee Street, thence southeast along the north
line of said lot, crossing Lee Street, and along the southwest
side of Prospect Street to point W, thence southwest along the
rear (southeast) lines of lots on the southeast side of Lee
Street to point X, thence southeast along the rear (northeast) lot
lines of the lots located on the northeast side:of Wharton Street to a point Y, thence
scuthwest along the northwest side of Clay Street to point Z on
the northeast side of Wharton Street, thence along the south side
of stream to point AA, thence northwest along the northeast side
of Penn Street, to point BB, thence southwest along the northwest
side of Lee Street to point CC, thence scutheast along the
northeast 1lot line to 201 Church Street to point DD, thence
southwest along the rear (southeast) lines of lots on the
southeast side of Lee Street, to point EE on the northwest side of Main
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